
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING PACKET 

NOVEMBER 12, 2015  



 
 

 
Mayor Council Members  
Merle Aaron Allan Steagall 
City Manager Ray Calfee 
Darrell Boeske Andy Curry 
City Secretary Norman Funderburk 
Jason Stuebe David Pierce  
     

Agenda 
Humble City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Thursday, November 12, 2015 6:30 P.M.  

City Hall Council Chamber, 114 West Higgins 
Humble, Texas 

 
Call to order. 
 

1. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

2. Consent agenda items which consist of ministerial or “housekeeping” items as required 
by law.  Items may be removed from the consent agenda and discussed by majority vote 
of the Council. 

 
a. Minutes – Regular Meeting Minutes October 22, 2015; Special Meeting Minutes 

October 30, 2015 
b. Financial Statement  
c. Current Invoices 
d. Monthly Department Reports 
e. Correspondence 

 
3. Ordinance 15-764 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, by 

amending Chapter 16, “Environment”, Article IV “Offensive Conditions”, Section 77 
“Prohibited Conditions, In General”; and making other findings and provisions related 
thereto.  
 

4. Ordinance 15-765 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas, by 
creating a new section 12-407 “Hotels and Motels” in Article XI, “Commercial Buildings 
and Properties” of Chapter 12, “Buildings and Building Regulations”; Providing for a 
fine in an amount not to exceed $2,000 a day for violation of this ordinance and making 
other findings and provisions related thereto.   

 
5. Ordinance 15-766 amending the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas by 

amending Chapter 18 “Fire Prevention and Protection”, Article IV “Fire Code”, Section 
18-98 by adopting a local amendment to the 2012 International Fire Prevention Code to 
require fire protection sprinkler systems for certain multi-family dwelling units and 



requiring minimum separation of certain residential structures; providing a saving and 
severability clause and providing an effective date.   

 
6. Resolution 15-758 casting a ballot for the election of a person to the Board of Directors 

of the Harris County Appraisal District.   
 

7. Approval of Bid 16-01 for an Electrical and Mechanical Services Contract for Water and 
Wastewater Facilities between the City of Humble, Texas and Electrical Field Services, 
Inc. in an amount based upon the hourly rate contained in the bid.  

 
8. Authorization for the Public Works Department to purchase a Street Sweeper in the 

amount of $163,635.00 and a Backhoe in the amount of $102,077.08. 
 

9. Approval of declared City Holidays for calendar year 2016. 
 

10.  Approval of the Shree Ganshyam Development Plat, 1.60 acres, being the same tract as 
recorded in Harris County Clerk’s File No. 20140510113 and situated in the John Brown 
Jones Survey, Abstract No. 484, City of Humble, Harris County, Texas; 1 Block, 1 
Reserve.   

 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Humble, Texas 
will be held on Thursday, November 12, 2015 at 6:30 P.M. at the City Hall Council Chamber, 
114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas.  The following subjects will be discussed, to wit: See 
Agenda. 
 
Posted this 9th day of November, 2015 at 5:00 P.M. 
 
 
      
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing Body of 
the City of Humble, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and that I posted a true and 
correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 114 West Higgins, Humble, Texas 
and the City’s website, www.cityofhumble.com.  The Agenda and Notice are readily accessible 
to the general public at all times.  Said Notice and Agenda were posted on October 19, 2015 at 
5:00 P.M. and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled 
time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the Humble City Hall on the 
following date and time:       by                   
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the  , day of    , 2015. 
 
      
Notary Public – Harris County, Texas  

http://www.cityofhumble.com/


 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2A 

 

MINUTES 

 

 OCTOBER 22, 2015 

OCTOBER 30, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes 10-22-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
 

OCTOBER 22, 2015 – 6:30 P.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
     
STAFF PRESENT:  Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
     Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Public Works Director Barry Brock 
    Asst. Fire Chief Mike Legoudes 
    Records Manager Betty Hogan 
    Lt. Melinda Bradshaw 
    Lt. Delbert Dawes 
    Lt. Mike Nansel 
    Sgt. Ken Theis 
    Detective Tony Taylor 
    Firefighter John Gosselin  
         
VISITORS PRESENT:  Linda Aaron 
    Juanita Steagall 
    Diane Pierce 
    Nomi Curry 
    Arliss Bentley 
    Matthew Costa         
     
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
6:30 P.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Norman Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  



Minutes 10-22-2015 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA 

2A.  MINUTES – MEETING MINUTES OCTOBER 8, 2015 
2B.  FINANCIAL STATEMENT 
2C.  MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
2E.  CORRESPONDENCE 

 
Upon a motion by Council Member Funderburk the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve the Consent Agenda. 
 

3. ORDINANCE 15-763 AUTHORIZING AND ALLOWING, UNDER THE ACT GOVERNING THE TEXAS 
MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM, “UPDATED SERVICE CREDITS” IN SAID SYSTEM ON AN ANNUAL 
BASIS FOR SERVICE PERFORMED BY QUALIFYING MEMBERS OF SUCH SYSTEM WHO AT THE 
EFFECTIVE DATE OF THE ALLOWANCE ARE IN THE EMPLOYMENT OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE; 
PROVIDING FOR INCREASED PRIOR AND CURRENT SERVICE ANNUITIES FOR RETIREES AND 
BENEFICIARIES OF DECEASED RETIREES OF THE CITY; TO INCREASE THE RATE OF DEPOSITS TO THE 
TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM BY THE EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY; AND ESTABLISHING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE FOR THE ORDINANCE.   
 
City Manager Boekse stated that staff had met extensively with TMRS staff to find a way to increase 
the employee contribution from six to seven percent without a large lump sum infusion of cash into 
the system from the City.  The manner in which this could be accomplished was by adjusting the 
city’s updated service credits from 100% to 50%.  Overall this will be a huge benefit for all current 
and future employees without significant cost to the City.   
 
Mayor Aaron stated he believed this was a really good deal for the City and for the employee’s 
retirement plan and that he whole heartedly endorsed it.   
 
Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to approve Ordinance 15-763 adopting the TMRS Plan Amendments effective January 1, 
2016. 
 

4. RESOLUTION 15-757 AMENDING A CERTAIN PORTION OF RESOLUTION 15-755 ADOPTED ON 
SEPTEMBER 15, 2015 ADJUSTING THE CITY OF HUMBLE WATER TAP FEES FOR RESIDENTIAL 
CUSTOMERS AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
City Manager Boeske stated that when the Council adopted the water and sewer tap and rate 
increases that one item was missing and this resolution was to correct the amounts to be charged.   
 
Mayor Aaron commented that the City of Humble buys water from the City of Houston as it is 
required to use surface water and that when the City of Houston imposes rate increases it effects 
the cost to Humble and that we must offset our costs as well.   

 
Upon a motion made by Council Member Curry to approve Resolution 15-757 amending the Water 
Tap Fees for Residential Customers.   
 
 
 



Minutes 10-22-2015 

5. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 

In accordance with the Texas Government Code §551.074 – Personnel Matters, the City Council 
convened into Executive Session at 6:41 P.M. on Thursday, October 22, 2015 in order to discuss 
matters pertaining to: 
 
A. Discussion and possible action regarding the position of Chief of Police. 

 
The Executive Session adjourned at 7:44 P.M.  No action was taken from Executive Session. 
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Regular Meeting of 
the City Council at 7:44 P.M. on Thursday, October 22, 2015.   

 
 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



Minutes 10-30-2015 

HUMBLE CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

SPECIAL MEETING 
 

OCTOBER 30, 2015 – 8:00 A.M. 
 

HELD AT CITY HALL, 114 WEST HIGGINS, HUMBLE, TEXAS 
 

STATE OF TEXAS § 
   § 
COUNTY OF HARRIS § 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Merle Aaron, Presiding 
    Mayor Pro Tem Allan Steagall 
    Council Member Ray Calfee 
    Council Member Andy Curry 
    Council Member Norman Funderburk 
    Council Member David Pierce 
    City Manager Darrell Boeske 
    City Secretary Jason Stuebe 
     
STAFF PRESENT:  Finance Director Aimee Phillips 
     Fire Chief Gary Outlaw 
    Police Chief Gary Warman 
    Asst. Fire Chief Mike Legoudes 
    Fire Marshal James Nykaza 
    Lt. Melinda Bradshaw 
    Lt. Delbert Dawes 
    Lt. Mike Nansel 
    Sgt. Ken Theis 
    Ofc. Rich Peters   
         
VISITORS PRESENT:  Jennifer Summers 
    David Gott 
             
Mayor Aaron called the regular meeting of the Humble City Council to order with a quorum present at 
8:00 A.M.   

 
1. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

Council Member Norman Funderburk offered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance.  
 

2. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
In accordance with the Texas Government Code §551.074 – Personnel Matters, the City Council 
convened into Executive Session at 8:01 A.M. on Friday, October 30, 2015 in order to discuss 
matters pertaining to: 
 



Minutes 10-30-2015 

A. Discussion and possible action regarding the position of Chief of Police. 
 

The Executive Session adjourned at 11:41 A.M. and Mayor Aaron reconvened the regular meeting at 
11:44 A.M.  City Manager Boeske recommended to the Council that Lt. Delbert Dawes be named 
Chief of Police.  There was no discussion. 
 
Upon a motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Steagall, the City Council voted six (6) for and none (0) 
opposed to appoint Lt. Delbert Dawes as Chief of Police.   
 
Mayor Aaron invited Lt. Dawes to make a comment.  Lt. Dawes thanked the Council, Police Chief, 
friends and family saying it was quite an honor.  
 

There being no further business before the City Council, Mayor Aaron adjourned the Special Meeting of 
the City Council at 11:45 A.M. on Friday, October 30, 2015.   

 
 
    
             

       Merle Aaron 
       Mayor 
 
 ATTEST: 
 
 
       
 Jason Stuebe 
 City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2B 

 

FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



City of Humble
Balance on Deposit, All Funds
For the Month October 2015

General Fund:

Fiscal YTD 
Earnings

Balance as of 
10/31/2015

Cash 58.37$              7,216,128.91$         
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 5,088.01           9,751,060.37           
Cash - METRO 54.27                7,591,486.78           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 6,695.62           7,128,740.28           

Total 11,896.27         31,687,416.34         

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:
Cash -                    5,272,505.93           
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 3,175.06           3,531,698.16           

Total 3,175.06           8,804,204.09           

Photo Traffic Safety Fund:
Cash 13.76                1,746,557.36           
Brokerage CDs -                    502,133.50              

Total 13.76                2,248,690.86           

Hotel Tax Fund:
Cash -                    667,794.92              

Total -                    667,794.92              

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 0.36                  4,156.47                  
Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction -                    145,569.71              

Total 0.36                  149,726.18              

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Cash -                    477,999.58              
Brokerage CDs 73.97                120,485.04              

Total 73.97                598,484.62              

Total All Funds:
Cash 126.40              22,972,473.48         
TexStar 0.36                  4,156.47                  
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 15,032.66         21,179,687.06         
Total 15,159.42$      44,156,317.01$       



Balance      
as of 

07/01/2015
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance      

as of 
09/30/2015

General Fund:

General Operating Fund:
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 12,495,576.88$   1,361,009.00$     (1,735,005.16)      (15,570.13)           33,666.64            (32,260.33)           12,107,416.90$   

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs - METRO 10,884,388.80     1,996,888.33       (3,000,000.00)      (289.72)                14,491.88            (12,727.50)           9,882,751.79       

-                       

Total 23,379,965.68     3,357,897.33       (4,735,005.16)      (15,859.85)           48,158.52            (44,987.83)           21,990,168.69     

-                       

Photo Traffic Safety Fund: -                       

Brokerage CDs 502,381.75          -                       -                       (454.50)                1,983.56              (1,983.56)             501,927.25          

Total 502,381.75          -                       -                       (454.50)                1,983.56              (1,983.56)             501,927.25          

Capital Projects Fund:
TexStar- Water Well Construction 4,155.21              -                       -                       -                       0.90                     -                       4,156.11              

Brokerage CDs- Water Well Construction 145,637.42          -                       -                       (137.46)                584.77                 (584.77)                145,499.96          

Total 149,792.63          -                       -                       (137.46)                585.67                 (584.77)                149,656.07          

Total General Fund:
TexStar 4,155.21              -                       -                       -                       0.90                     -                       4,156.11              

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 24,027,984.85     3,357,897.33       (4,735,005.16)      (16,451.81)           50,726.85            (47,556.16)           22,637,595.90     

Total 24,032,140.06$   3,357,897.33$     (4,735,005.16)$    (16,451.81)$         50,727.75$          (47,556.16)$         22,641,752.01$   

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment

strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 

Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - General Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Fourth Fiscal Quarter

07/01/2015 - 09/30/2015



Balance       
as of 

07/01/2015
Purchases Sales

Change in 
Market Value

Dividends & 
Interest

Cash Activity
Balance       

as of 
09/30/2015

Enterprise Fund:

Water & Sewer Operating Fund:   

Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 4,839,767.80$     -                       (300,795.89)         (4,614.22)             14,926.23            (13,963.42)           4,535,320.50$     

Sewer Plant Construction Fund:
Brokerage CDs 120,540.96          -                       -                       (112.08)                226.85                 (226.85)                120,428.88          

Total Enterprise Fund:
Federal Agency Bonds, Commercial Paper, Brokerage CDs 4,960,308.76$     -$                     (300,795.89)$       (4,726.30)$           15,153.08$          (14,190.27)$         4,655,749.38$     

Note:  The quarterly report is in full compliance with the investment

strategy as established in the City's Investment Policy and the 

Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256, Texas Government Code.

City of Humble - Enterprise Fund
Summary of Investment Portfolio Activity

For Fourth Fiscal Quarter

07/01/2015 - 09/30/2015



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2C 

 

CURRENT INVOICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ACCOUNTS PAYABLE CHECKS

Water & Sewer Special Red Light Beautification Special 

Date General Fund Operating Fund Revenue Camera Projects TOTAL

10/2/2015 108,553.12              185,232.43                   276.92                   258.28                 9,843.50                 304,164.25$             
10/2/2015 50,425.25                5,189.34                       38.95                     55,653.54$               
10/5/2015 3,084.72                  158,953.82             162,038.54$             

10/16/2015 40,694.98                1,610.42                       162.00                   42,467.40$               
10/16/2015 85,153.53                160,975.69                   87.77                     57,673.80           300.00                 363,863.01             668,053.80$             
10/20/2015 576.33                     576.33$                    
10/27/2015 5,145.00                  5,145.00$                 

-$                           
293,632.93             353,007.88                   565.64                   57,932.08           300.00                 532,660.33             1,238,098.86$         













 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2D 

 

MONTHLY DEPARTMENT REPORTS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 















































































































































 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #2E 

 

CORRESPONDENCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Mayor and Council 
 
From:  Jason Stuebe, City Secretary 
 
Re: Chez Nous Restaurant – Downtown Improvement Program 
 

***Information Only*** 
 
Chez Nous has successfully completed renovations on the exterior of their property in 
accordance with the Downtown Improvement Program Guidelines.  As such, having met the 
reporting requirements and having satisfactorily improved their property, a reimbursement 
grant in the amount of $10,000.00 will be issued to them.  Attached to this correspondence is a 
copy of Chez Nous’ agreement with the City and copies of invoices and cancelled checks.   
 
Respectfully,  
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 
 

114 WEST HIGGINS ● HUMBLE, TEXAS ● 77338 ● (281) 446-3061 ● FAX (281) 446-7843 

OFFICE OF THE 
CITY SECRETARY 







































 
October 30, 2015 

Number 37 
 
 
 
 

PFIA Training Reduction Legislation: 
Close, But No Cigar? 

  
Prior to the 2015 legislative session, the Public Funds Investment Act (PFIA) required a city’s 
chief financial officer and investment officer to take investment training consisting of: (1) 10 
hours of investment training within 12 months after taking office or assuming duties; and (2) 10 
hours of investment training once every two years thereafter.  
 
In 2015, two bills passed that alter the “continuing” investment requirement described by (2), 
above:  
 

 H.B. 870 (Smith/Seliger) reduces the amount of PFIA training hours for city and school 
district finance and investment officers from ten hours every two years to eight hours 
every two years. (Note: city finance and investment officers must still initially receive ten 
hours of training within 12 months after taking office or assuming investment duties.)  

 
 H.B. 1148 (Kacal/Schwertner) provides that a city investment officer must take only the 

initial 10 hour training under the PFIA but no continuing investment training if the city: 
(1) does not invest city funds; or (2) only deposits city funds in interest-bearing deposit 
accounts or certificates of deposit.  

 
In spite of the clear intent behind this legislation, the bills were drafted in such a way that 
arguably precludes H.B. 1148 from achieving its stated purpose. When H.B. 870 passed, the 
continuing training requirement for cities was effectively moved to a different subsection of the 
statute. Meanwhile, H.B. 1148 makes reference to the previous statutory location of the 
continuing training requirement before the passage of H.B. 870, rather than the new location of 
the requirement as amended by H.B. 870.   
 
Because the applicability of H.B. 870 is clear, the safest reading of the statute is that all city 
finance and investment officers, regardless of the amount and type of city investments, must 
receive the initial ten hours of PFIA training, and then eight hours of continuing training every 

http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/html/HB00870F.htm
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/html/HB01148F.htm


2 
 

two years after that. The end result is that cities that otherwise would be exempt from continuing 
PFIA training pursuant to H.B. 1148 may still need to receive continuing training until the statute 
is clarified by the legislature.  League staff will work with the author of H.B. 1148 to fix the 
inadvertent result next session.   
 
 

Affordable Care Act: 
Must-Know Dates for IRS Regulatory Reporting Compliance 

 

Deadlines are approaching for filing 2015 calendar year forms 
Now is the time for employers to file the required forms to the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) 
documenting your city’s 2015 employee health coverage.   
 
Under the new regulations, employers must compile monthly information on full-time employees 
and their health coverage, and report this information at the end of each year to the IRS and to 
full-time employees. The first reports must be submitted in early 2016, based on your city’s 2015 
health coverage:   
 

 January 31, 2016: Deadline for distributing paper or electronic individual transmittals. If 
you distribute them electronically, be sure to get a consent for electronic submission from 
each employee. 

 February 28, 2016: IRS Aggregate Paper Filing. 
 March 31, 2016:  IRS Aggregate Electronic Filing.  

(Note: Because January 31 and February 28 are on Sundays, you can file on the next business 
day.) 

 
Requirements differ for small and large employers 
IRS regulatory reporting compliance requirements differ for small employers (Non-ALE) and 
applicable large employers (ALE). An ALE has 50 or more full-time, or full-time equivalent, 
employees based on the preceding calendar year’s employee demographics. Full-time employees 
are employed at least 30 hours a week.  
 
TML MultiState IEBP has created a handy chart to help you understand IRS definitions, 
requirements, and sections 6055 and 6056 filing paths for Non-ALE and ALE employers. You’ll 
find it here: http://iebp.org/documents/RegulatoryA.pdf  
 
File on time and avoid IRS penalties 
The IRS imposes penalties for failure to complete and submit required forms on time. The 
penalties are typically $100 per return, with a maximum of $1.5 million. The penalties apply 
separately to reporting under sections 6055 and 6056.  
 
The IRS may waive penalties if employers show documented good faith effort to file accurately and on 
time, or the failure to file is due to reasonable cause, rather than willful neglect.  
 
Learn more about IRS penalties here: http://iebp.org/documents/RegulatoryB.pdf  

http://iebp.org/documents/RegulatoryA.pdf
http://iebp.org/documents/RegulatoryB.pdf


3 
 

 
Get support and guidance from TML MultiState IEBP 
TML MultiState IEBP offers a comprehensive regulatory reporting solution that can help ensure 
you accurately complete and submit the proper IRS forms to meet the filing requirements and 
deadlines.  
 
To learn how you can streamline your filing process, contact TML MultiState IEBP at 1-800-
348-7879. 
 
 

Texas Ethics Commission Proposes New Rules 
 
As reported in previous editions of the Legislative Update, the Texas Ethics Commission is 
seeking comments on proposed rules to implement new requirements under H.B. 1295.  The bill 
imposes new vendor disclosure requirements on city contracts.   
  
Since the passage of H.B. 1295, the League has been concerned about its effect on city contracts.  
All of the correspondence related to the bill is available here.   
 
Member cities are urged to:  (1) file comments with the commission by November 26, 2015, by 
email to public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us or mail to Natalia Luna Ashley, Texas Ethics 
Commission, P.O. Box 12070, Austin, Texas, 78711-2070; and/or (2) communicate issues and 
concerns to Christy Drake-Adams, TML legal counsel, at Christy@tml.org so that she can 
coordinate efforts in this process.   
 
 

TML member cities may use the material herein for any 

purpose. No other person or entity may reproduce, duplicate, 

or distribute any part of this document without the written 

authorization of the Texas Municipal League. 

http://www.sos.state.tx.us/texreg/archive/October232015/Proposed%20Rules/1.ADMINISTRATION.html#13
http://www.capitol.state.tx.us/tlodocs/84R/billtext/pdf/HB01295F.pdf#navpanes=0
http://www.tml.org/p/HB%201295%20TML%20Correspondence.pdf
mailto:public_comment@ethics.state.tx.us
mailto:Christy@tml.org


 
November 6, 2015 

Number 38 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Constitutional Amendment Propositions 
  

Texas voters passed all seven proposed amendments to the Texas Constitution earlier this week.  
Only four of those have any effect on cities:   
 

 Proposition 1 provides, among other things, that a property owner is entitled to an 
exemption from taxation by a school district of $25,000 of the appraised value of the 
person’s residence homestead.   

 Proposition 2 permits the legislature to provide a complete residence homestead property 
tax exemption for the surviving spouse of a 100 percent or totally disabled veteran who 
died before the law authorizing a residence homestead exemption for such a veteran took 
effect, but only if the surviving spouse has not remarried since the death of the disabled 
veteran. 

 Proposition 6 enshrines in the Constitution that the people have the right to hunt, fish, and 
harvest wildlife, and ensures that the amendment does not affect the power of the 
legislature to authorize a city to regulate the discharge of a weapon in a populated area in 
the interest of public safety.  

 Proposition 7 dedicates a portion of the motor vehicle sales tax to the state highway fund 
to be used for road construction.    

During the legislative session, city officials and League staff worked to ensure that the above 
amendments did not erode municipal authority.   
 
 
 



2 
 

Attorney General Approves “In God We Trust” on Police Cars 
 
The Texas attorney general recently released Opinion No. KP-0042, which concludes that a 
“court is likely to conclude that a law enforcement department’s display of the national motto, 
“In God We Trust,” on its patrol vehicles is permissible under the Establishment Clause of the 
United States Constitution.”   
 
According to the attorney general, Congress adopted “In God We Trust” as the national motto of 
the United States in 1956. In addition, Congress has required use of the motto on coins and 
printed currency of the United States. “Against constitutional challenges to these statutes, courts 
across the country have consistently held that the statutes do not violate the Establishment Clause 
of the First Amendment.” 
 
In providing his opinion, the attorney general concluded that courts upholding the motto have 
emphasized that “[i]ts use is of a patriotic or ceremonial character.” 
 
 

Speaker Straus Releases House Interim Charges 
 
House Speaker Joe Straus has released interim charges to the committees of the Texas House of 
Representatives to study prior to the 2017 legislative session. The descriptions of city-related 
charges are reprinted below.  
 
Agriculture and Livestock  
 

 Study the appraisal of agricultural land for taxation and related issues, including the 
change-of-use “rollback” provision. Examine the impact of the current appraisal system 
of agricultural land for taxation on rural economic development.  
 

Appropriations 
 

 Evaluate the effectiveness of the Department of Public Safety’s use of funds appropriated 
during the 84th legislative session for border security operations. Examine existing data 
and reporting on border security metrics, and recommend improvements to ensure the 
availability of accurate information in considering sustaining or increasing border 
security funds.  

 
 Study the various methods of funding the state’s transportation network, including recent 

legislative enactments such as Proposition 1 and Proposition. Review the current budget 
structure for the Texas Department of Transportation as it relates to transportation 
funding categories, and make recommendations for future allocations to accurately 
address the transportation needs in the state.  

 
  

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/opinions/opinions/51paxton/op/2015/kp0042.pdf


3 
 

Defense and Veterans’ Affairs  
 

 Explore how encroachment (environmental, technological, and architectural) impacts the 
vital missions of our military bases in Texas and which policies can be put into place 
while retaining respect for private property rights, economic growth, and the operation of 
military facilities.  
 

 Assess ways the State of Texas can further aid our federal military installations and their 
communities in order to minimize the negative consequences of a potential forthcoming 
BRAC round by the federal government.  

 
 Assess the continuing effect and the impact of sequestration and federal defense spending 

on Texas military bases, soldiers and their families, base communities, and Texas defense 
contractors. Identify solutions to address issues raised by federal policy.  

 
Economic and Small Business Development  
 

 Evaluate what local governments are doing to attract businesses to their communities and 
examine ways the state can leverage these practices and provide support. Include ways to 
improve local economic development programs to ensure a continued return on 
investment for taxpayers. In addition, study the authority, financial accountability, and 
types of statutorily allowed expenditures of economic development corporations. Provide 
analysis of 4A and 4B sales tax programs and determine if they are still meeting their 
intended purpose effectively.  
 

 Oversee implementation of H.B. 26, which includes – among other things – provisions 
relating to the Event Trust Fund. Review best practices for measuring success of 
economic development incentives. Consider general metrics or principles to aid the 
legislature in determining viable and sustainable incentive programs that provide a 
“Return on Investment” for taxpayers.  

 
 Evaluate Texas’ competitiveness with other states in recruiting and cultivating high- 

growth, high-tech industries, fostering economic development, and creating new jobs. 
Examine if current incentives and regulations assist or hinder the state’s ability to 
compete with other states for economic growth and sustainability.  

 
 Examine if the state has an adequately diversified economic foundation and make 

recommendations on how to better achieve diversification. Look at ways to achieve 
balance between rural and urban economic development. Consider methods to improve 
workforce development initiatives and incentives that will improve re-employment after 
layoffs and release from incarceration as well as methods to improve employment rates 
for recent graduates.  

 
Elections  
 

 Examine the petition process for addressing local ordinances, the time necessary to 
prepare a petition, the collection of signatures, and the enforcement of local standards 



4 
 

required for a petition to be valid. Make necessary recommendations to clarify the 
petition process to ensure accountability. 
 

 Evaluate options to improve the transparency of local bond elections, including but not 
limited to: current processes used to educate voters about how tax dollars will be spent, 
the time of year bond elections are held, and the description of bond proposals on the 
ballot. Make appropriate legislative recommendations.  

 
 Identify policy options to improve compliance with campaign finance reporting laws by 

local officials and candidates for local office.  
 

 Examine the methods by which local election officials are informed about changes to 
election law, and potential improvements that would assist these officials in learning of 
and complying with these changes.  

 
Energy Resources  
 

 Study current renewable energy regulations in Texas in order to more effectively balance 
federal, state and local regulations.  
 

 Study enforcement policies of the Railroad Commission of Texas. Consider the 
effectiveness of maximum fines as a deterrent of violation, the economic benefit of non- 
compliance, and greater accessibility to enforcement and complaint data for the public.  

 
 Determine if sufficient safety standards exist to protect groundwater contamination from 

disposal and injection wells. (Joint charge with the House Committee on Natural 
Resources.)  

 
 Conduct legislative oversight and monitoring of the agencies and programs under the 

committee’s jurisdiction and the implementation of relevant legislation passed by the 
84th Legislature. In conducting this oversight, the committee should monitor the impact 
of major energy legislation passed by the 84th Legislature including the implementation 
of regulated surface activity on oil and gas sites. 
 

Environmental Regulation  
 

 Monitor initiatives at the local level to regulate environmental issues. Consider if 
legislative changes are needed to resolve ambiguous regulations regarding the priority of 
state or local authority.  
 

 Study the effectiveness of current state programs to address scrap tire management and 
disposal methods, including the incidence of scrap tires and rubber debris on roadways 
and in watercourses. Include analysis of disposal fee collection and management as well 
as local funding allocations. Provide incentive or enforcement recommendations for 
ongoing clean-up efforts, abatement of identified tire dump sites, and means of ensuring 
accurate record keeping and reporting.  

 



5 
 

Government Transparency and Operation 
 

 Study issues related to access to public information held outside of the custody or control 
of the governmental body by current or former officers or employees. Assess whether the 
Public Information Act’s procedures for response to repetitious or redundant public 
information requests adequately protect small governmental bodies from the financial 
burdens imposed by such requests.  
 

 Study the impact of emerging technologies used by law enforcement and issues related to 
appropriate dissemination of the data provided by those technologies, including the 
impact of technologies on the operation of law enforcement agencies, the operation of the 
Public Information Act, and any appropriate safeguards for citizens and law enforcement 
officers who interact with those technologies or whose data is recorded.  
 

Homeland Security and Public Safety  
 

 Review the functions of the Texas Division of Emergency Management and the state’s 
natural disaster preparedness planning efforts to determine their effectiveness at 
addressing a growing range of threats. Identify best practices to ensure coordination 
between municipalities, counties, and state agencies.  
 

 Review the current penalties for operating a commercial motor vehicle that is in violation 
of state or federal safety standards. Evaluate the role of state and local law enforcement 
agencies in enforcing commercial motor vehicle standards, and make recommendations 
to ensure the safety of the traveling public.  

 
 Conduct legislative oversight and monitoring of the agencies and programs under the 

committee’s jurisdiction and the implementation of relevant legislation passed by the 
84th Legislature, including legislation that expanded the ability to carry handguns openly.  

 
Insurance  
 

 Monitor the implementation of S.B. 900, which relates to the operation of the Texas 
Windstorm Insurance Program, including the rulemaking process by the Texas 
Department of Insurance and the adoption of an updated plan of operation by the Texas 
Windstorm Insurance Association.  
 

Investments and Financial Services  
 

 Examine the short-term lending industry in Texas. Study the adequacy of consumer 
access to credit and the effectiveness of consumer protections, specifically reviewing the 
consistency and coordination of state law with federal law and local ordinances. Review 
data-reporting requirements for credit-access businesses and make appropriate 
recommendations.  
 

  



6 
 

Land and Resource Management  
 

 Study state preparedness and response to natural disasters including but not limited to: an 
evaluation of risks to the state, emergency planning efforts, first response efforts, 
coordination between the General Land Office, the State Emergency Operation Center, 
and other state, local, and federal resources. Make appropriate recommendations to 
ensure Texas has the proper programs, resources, and personnel in place to respond to 
natural disasters.  
 

 Examine the rate of erosion along the Texas coast and the effects of coastal erosion on 
public beaches, natural resources, coastal development, public infrastructure, and public 
and private property. Analyze current programs related to coastal erosion and examine 
their effectiveness. Make appropriate recommendations.  

 
 Study the effectiveness of the implementation of S.B. 695 and examine the feasibility and 

desirability of creating and maintaining a coastal barrier system.  
 

 Examine current regulatory authority available to municipalities in their extraterritorial 
jurisdiction. Study current annexation policies in Texas. Make necessary legislative 
recommendations to ensure a proper balance between development, municipal 
regulations, and the needs of citizens in Texas.  

 
Natural Resources  
 

 Examine the regional and state water planning processes, with emphasis on the 
following:  

o the integration of H.B. 4 (2013);  
o the appropriate role of the state in ensuring that the process both supports regional 

goals and priorities and the water needs of the state as a whole, and how the state 
might encourage strategies to benefit multiple regions;  

o the structure and operation of the regional planning groups;  
o the interaction between the planning process and groundwater management;  
o whether the “drought of record” remains the appropriate benchmark for planning; 

and  
o any impediments to meeting the conservation, agricultural, and rural project goals 

set by HB 4, and possible new approaches to help meet these goals.  
 

 Evaluate the status of water markets in Texas and the potential benefits and challenges of 
expanded markets for water. Include an evaluation of greater interconnections between 
water systems through both engineered and natural infrastructure. Examine opportunities 
for incentives from areas receiving water supplies to areas providing those supplies that 
could benefit each area and the state as a whole.  
 

 Analyze the factors contributing to freshwater loss in the state, including evaporation, 
excess flows into the Gulf of Mexico, and infrastructure inefficiencies, and examine 
techniques to prevent such losses, including aquifer storage and recovery, off-channel 
storage, and infrastructure enhancements.  



7 
 

 
 Evaluate the progress of seawater desalination projects near the Texas coast as a means of 

increasing water supplies and reducing strain on existing supplies, building on the work 
of the Joint Interim Committee to Study Water Desalination. Examine the viability of the 
use of public-private partnerships and of methods by which the state might facilitate such 
a project.  
 

Pensions  
 

 Study the impact that fluctuations in global financial markets have had on public pension 
funds. Analyze assumed rates of return on investments, structures among asset classes, 
long-term and shorter-term investment goals, and make appropriate recommendations to 
ensure the investment structure of public pension funds are meeting fiduciary 
responsibilities.  

 
 Examine Texas pension funds’ compliance with Governmental Accounting Standards 

Board Financial Reporting Statements 67 and 68, and identify the effect the reporting 
requirements are having on the state's pension systems.  

 
Special Purpose Districts  
 

 Study best practices in the creation, management, and expansion of Municipal 
Management Districts (MMD) and/or Improvement Districts in the state. Consider the 
economic impact of the taxation or assessment of local property owners through bonds 
issued by MMDs. The committee should specifically examine the mechanisms by which 
MMDs expand or limit their powers, MMD consistency in the use of eminent domain 
powers, transparency in MMD reporting requirements, and the mechanisms for voter 
approval of the creation and dissolution of MMDs. Develop and recommend standards 
for future district creation.  

 
State Affairs  
 

 Evaluate the administrative process used to determine utility rates. Consider if sufficient 
opportunities exist to ensure customer representation. Also, determine if additional 
legislative guidance is needed to ensure public notification and participation.  
 

 Examine how the Public Utility Commission of Texas, when applicable, and utility 
providers, whether vertically integrated, privately owned, or municipally owned, can 
ensure consumer protection regarding metering devices for water, gas, and electricity 
service. Review recent examples of inaccurate or confusing billings and offer 
recommendations on appropriate consumer recourse and appeal. In addition, assess utility 
procedures regarding meter installation.  

 
 Examine state and local laws applicable to undocumented immigrants throughout the 

State of Texas and analyze the effects of those laws in conjunction with federal 
immigration laws and the policies and practices followed by U.S. Immigration and 
Customs Enforcement.  



8 
 

 
 Examine payroll deductions from state or political subdivision employees for the purpose 

of labor organization membership dues or fees as well as charitable organization and 
nonprofit contributions. Determine if this process is an appropriate use of public funds.  

 
Transportation  
 

 Study the Texas Department of Transportation's role in responding to natural disasters, 
specifically reviewing contraflow lane plans for major routes and technology that can 
minimize evacuation and travel times.  
 

 Evaluate local transportation funding mechanisms authorized by the state, such as 
transportation reinvestment zones, to determine their effectiveness. Identify methods for 
local entities to utilize these tools to improve congestion.  

 
 Study the current statutory requirements for utility relocation and recommend 

modifications that will minimize delay times while protecting taxpayers and ratepayers.  
 

 Examine innovative transportation technologies, such as autonomous vehicles, to 
evaluate potential cost savings and ways in which they may reduce traffic congestion, 
promote safety, and increase economic productivity.  

 
Urban Affairs  
 

 Study the effectiveness and efficiency of current programs in Texas as well as best 
practices to determine how to decrease the risk and mitigate the impact of wildfires, 
floods, and other natural hazards in the wildland-urban interface. Examine the duties, 
performance, and jurisdictions of water districts, municipalities, Emergency Services 
Districts, other similar districts, and state offices like the Fire Marshal and Extension 
Services. Evaluate current regulations and identify best practices. Recommend 
approaches for hazard mitigation and response to natural disasters. (Joint charge with the 
House Committee on County Affairs.)  
 

 Identify and address potential gaps in cities’ cybersecurity policy and ensure that personal 
information held by cities and other municipal entities is secure.  

 
 Examine whether changes are needed to the Texas Department of Housing and 

Community Affairs (TDHCA) low-income tax credit program to ensure compliance with 
the U.S. Supreme Court's decision in Texas Department of Housing and Community 

Affairs et al. v. Inclusive Communities Project, Inc., et al. on fair housing in Texas.  
 

 Review existing housing programs and policies in Texas to determine how to best 
comply with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s new 
Affirmatively Furthering Fair Housing Rules.  

 
 Investigate the operation and regulation, including a review of standards, monitoring, and 

enforcement, of boarding homes in municipalities and unincorporated areas of counties. 



9 
 

Identify communities that have adopted local standards, and review procedures for 
investigating and closing unlicensed facilities that are providing services which require 
state licensure. (Joint charge with the House Committee on Human Services.)  

 
Ways and Means  
 

 Review aspects of the property tax system that contribute to rising property tax levies and 
taxpayer dissatisfaction. Examine whether the current system allows taxpayers 
meaningful participation in determining local property tax rates. Explore changes to the 
appraisal process that could improve the accuracy of appraisals. 
 

 Review current law and policy regarding sales and use taxes on information services and 
data processing services.  

 
 Monitor implementation of the increased residence homestead exemption as approved by 

the voters in Proposition 1. Determine the amount of property tax relief for homeowners, 
taking into account increases in appraisals and local property tax rates. Additionally, 
determine the cost to the state to make up the revenue loss for school districts.  

 
Select Committee on Emerging Issues in Texas Law Enforcement  
 

 Study body camera policies and best practices to develop guidelines available for 
reference by agencies utilizing the funding grants provided by the state. Accordingly, 
review the issues of data storage, records retention, the Public Information Act, and 
evidentiary procedures. Determine if there is a need to expand on the minimum standards 
set by S.B. 158.  
 

 Study the impact of emerging technologies used by law enforcement and issues related to 
appropriate dissemination of the data provided by those technologies, including the 
impact of technologies on the operation of law enforcement agencies, the operation of the 
Public Information Act, and any appropriate safeguards for citizens and law enforcement 
officers who interact with those technologies or whose data is recorded. (Joint charge 
with the House Committee on Government Transparency and Operation.)  

 
 Review the training and professional needs of law enforcement in the State of Texas, 

including the award and sufficiency of law enforcement training grants, methods of 
training, and types of training, including training in emerging or changing threats such as 
human trafficking, mental health crisis and confrontation, organized crime, and critical 
incident shooting.  
 

 Determine any changes necessary to assure that each Texas law enforcement officer is 
provided with the necessary and appropriate tools and protocols to increase public safety 
of all Texans, including the safety of Texas peace officers.  
 

The League will monitor, participate in, and report on the progress of each study.  
 
 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

ORDINANCE 15-764 

 

PUBLIC NUISANCE ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF HUMBLE 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 15-764 

 
AN ORDINANCE  AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CHAPTER 16, ENVIRONMENT, 
ARTICLE IV OFFENSIVE CONDITIONS, SECTION 77 PROHIBITED 
CONDITIONS, IN GENERAL; AND MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND 
PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 16, Environment, Article IV Offensive Conditions on Premises; Section 77 

Prohibited Conditions of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Humble, Texas is hereby 
amended as follows: 

 
  Sec. 16-77 Public Nuisance Prohibited 
 

(a) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any lot within the 
city to permit or allow holes or places of such lots where water may accumulate 
and become stagnant, or to permit or allow the accumulation of stagnant water 
thereon, or permit the same to remain thereon.  
 

(b) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 
building, establishment, lot or yard within the city to permit or allow any carrion, 
filth, or any other impure or unwholesome matter liable to produce disease to 
accumulate, attract or harbor mosquitoes, rodents, vermin, or other disease-
carrying pests or remain thereon. 
 

(c) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any lot within the 
city to permit or allow weeds, rubbish, brush, trash or any other matter liable to 
produce disease, attract or harbor mosquitoes, rodents, vermin, or other disease-
carrying pests or remain thereon.  

 
(d) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 

building, establishment, lot or yard in the city to permit or allow any condition 
that is dangerous to life or health; or whatever renders the ground, the water, the 
air or any food and drink unhealthy and a hazard to life or health. 

 
(e) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 

building, establishment, lot or yard within the city to store or accumulate refuse 
on premises unless the refuse is entirely contained in a closed receptacle. 

 
(f) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 

building, establishment, lot or yard within the city to store or accumulate rubbish 
including newspapers, refrigerators, stoves, furniture, tires,  and cans on premises 
within 300 feet of a public street for 10 days or more, unless the rubbish or object 
is completely enclosed in a building or is not visible from a public street. 
 



(g) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 
building, or establishment to maintain a building in a manner that is structurally 
unsafe or constitutes a hazard to safety, health, or public welfare because of 
inadequate maintenance, unsanitary conditions, dilapidation, obsolescence, 
disaster, damage, or abandonment or because it constitutes a fire hazard; 

 
(h) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 

building, establishment, lot or yard within the city to maintain a flea market in a 
manner that constitutes a fire hazard. 
 

(i) It shall be unlawful for any person who shall own or occupy any house, structure, 
building, establishment, lot or yard in the city to permit or allow any condition 
constituting a nuisance as defined in or provided by any other provision of this 
code.   

 
SECTION 3.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the 

application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged 
invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, 
impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part of provision hereof other than 
the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.  

 
SECTION 4. Upon the passage of this ordinance, the City Secretary is ordered to publish this 

Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of Article II Section 13 of the Charter of the 
City of Humble and to note on this Ordinance and on the record thereof the fact that this 
Ordinance has been published as required by the Charter, including the date of such 
publication. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the   day of    , 2015 
 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 

 
 

THIS ORDINANCE WAS PUBLISHED IN THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER OF THE CITY OF 
HUMBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 13 OF THE 
CHARTER OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS ON: 
 
 



ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

ORDINANCE 15-765 

 

HOTEL AND MOTEL DEVELOPMENT 

ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
CITY OF HUMBLE 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 15-765 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, BY CREATING A NEW SECTION 12-407 “HOTELS 
AND MOTELS” IN ARTICLE XI, “COMMERCIAL BUILDINGS AND 
PROPERTIES” OF CHAPTER 12, “BUILDINGS AND BUILDING 
REGULATIONS”; PROVIDING FOR A FINE IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO 
EXCEED $2,000 A DAY FOR A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE; AND 
MAKING OTHER FINDINGS AND PROVISIONS RELATED THERETO. 
 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1.  A new section 12-407 Hotels and Motels in Article XI, Commercial Buildings and 

Properties in Chapter 12, Building and Building Regulations of the Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Humble, Texas is hereby created as follows: 

 
  Sec. 12-407 – Hotels and Motels 
 

(a) The following requirements apply to hotels and motels permitted for new 
construction after December 1, 2015:   
 
(1) Number of rooms.  A hotel or motel shall have at least 65 guest rooms. 
(2) Accessibility.  A guest room shall be accessible only from an internal hallway 

and the internal hallway shall be accessible only from a central lobby area 
contained within the hotel/motel.   

 
(b) After January 1, 2015, the following requirements apply to all hotels and motels: 

(1) Registration.  When a guest arrives for registration, the guest shall provide at 
least two forms of identification, one of which shall include photographic 
likeness of the guest and be issued by a governmental agency.  The hotel 
operation shall keep the guest registration information on the premises of the 
hotel for at least 90 days. 

(2) Security Cameras.  A hotel/motel shall install and maintain, in proper 
operating order, security cameras in each interior hallway and lobby, in the 
parking lots, and at each exterior door.  The cameras shll be placed so as to 
provide visibility to the front and rear exteriors of the building and to the 
swimming pool area, if any.  Monitors shall be provided for security and 
other hotel/motel personnel so that on-site activities may be viewed at all 
times.  The security cameras shall be equipped with recording devices 
capable under normal lighting and operating conditions of producing 
reasonable photographic impages of the persons in the specified areas.  
Video recordings from security cameras shall be operating 24 hours a day 
and shall be kept a minimum of 30 days. 

(3) Exterior Doors.  Exterior doors (other than lobby doors) shall be locked after 
11:00 p.m. and shall be equipped with an alarm or other device that will alert 
hotel/motel security and other personnel when the door has been opened. 
 

 



(c) Enforcement and Penalty: 
(1) Penalty.  Whenever said official finds an environment and/or operations 

contrary to the provisions of this Article, a written notice stating the nature of 
the violation shall be served by the City in writing; providing ten (10) days 
for the satisfactory correction thereof.  The offender, shall, within the period 
of time stated in such notice, permanently cease all violations.  If the 
offender continues any violation after the expiration of the time stated, said 
offender shall be guilty of a misdemeanor punishable by a fine not to exceed 
$2,000.00 Each day in which any violation shall continue shall be deemed a 
separate offense.      

 
SECTION 3.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the 

application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged 
invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, 
impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part of provision hereof other than 
the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of 
Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.  

 
SECTION 4. Upon the passage of this ordinance, the City Secretary is ordered to publish this 

Ordinance in accordance with the provisions of Article II Section 13 of the Charter of the 
City of Humble and to note on this Ordinance and on the record thereof the fact that this 
Ordinance has been published as required by the Charter, including the date of such 
publication. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the   day of    , 2015 
 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 

 
THIS ORDINANCE WAS PUBLISHED IN THE OFFICIAL NEWSPAPER OF THE CITY OF 
HUMBLE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 13 OF THE 
CHARTER OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS ON: 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

ORDINANCE 15-766 

 

LOCAL AMENDMENT TO 2012 

INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 15-766 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, AMENDING 
CHAPTER 18, FIRE PREVENTION AND PROTECTION, ARTICLE IV FIRE 
CODE, SECTION 18-98 BY ADOPTING A LOCAL AMENDMENT TO THE 2012 
INTERNATIONAL FIRE PREVENTION CODE TO REQUIRE FIRE 
PROTECTION SPRINKLER SYSTEMS FOR CERTAIN MULTI-FAMILY 
DWELLING UNITS AND REQUIRING MINIMUM SEPARATION OF 
CERTAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A SAVING AND 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Humble enacts this local amendment to its adopted fire and building codes solely 
to address imminent threats of destruction of property or injury to persons; and 
 
WHEREAS, Section 1301.551 of the Texas Occupation Code prohibits municipal regulations requiring 
fire protection sprinkler systems in certain one- or two- family dwellings; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas State Plumbing Board defines a two family dwelling as a detached structure with 
means of egress designed for the residence of two families (“duplex”); 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Humble requires sprinkler systems in non-residential structures in accordance 
with its adopted life safety codes; and  
 
WHEREAS, Section 214.211 of the Texas Local Government Code defines “residential” as having the 
character of a detached one-family or two-family dwelling or a multiple single-family dwelling that is not 
more than three stories high with separate means of egress, including the accessory structures of the 
dwelling, and that does not have the character of a facility used for the accommodation of transient guests 
or a structure in which medical, rehabilitative, or assisted living services are provided in connection with 
the occupancy of the structure; and  
 
Now, therefore, 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the City of Humble hereby adopts the following modifications to Chapter 18 of the 
City of Humble Code of Ordinances known as Fire Prevention and Protection, Article IV Fire Code, 
Section 18-98: 
 
SECTION 1. Chapter 18 of the City of Humble Code of Ordinances, Fire Prevention and Protection, 

Article IV Fire Code, Section 18-98, Adopted, is amended to include the following new 
sections: 

  
  Sec. 18-98 (a) – Modifications to 2012 International Fire Prevention Code 

1) Chapter 9, Section 903.2.8 “Group R” of the 2012 International Fire Prevention Code 
is hereby adopted with changes to read as follows: An automatic sprinkler system 

installed in accordance with Section 903.3 shall be provided throughout all buildings 
with a Group R fire area, including multi-family structures, townhouses, tri-plex and 
quadplex apartments with no minimum square footage and regardless of any fire 

rated walls, shall have a fire sprinkler system installed, when they contain three or 
more dwelling units. 



 
2) All Sections of Chapter 9 of the 2012 International Fire Prevention Code referencing 

a Fire Area of 12,000 Square Feet are hereby amended to reference a reduced Fire 
Area of 10,000 Square Feet, including Group A, E, F, H, I, M, and S.  New 
construction and renovations consisting of 50% or more shall install a Fire Sprinkler 
System. 
 

Sec. 18-98 (b) – Minimum Separation for Residential Structures 
The minimum separation between residential structures, including detached one- and 
two-family dwellings, that do not have fire sprinkler systems shall be at least 7.5 feet. 

 
SECTION 4. In the event any section, paragraph, subdivision, clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or 

part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance shall 
for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this Ordinance as a whole or any part 
of provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or unconstitutional; and the 
City Council of the City of Humble, Texas, declares that it would have passed each and 
every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, or whether there be one or more parts.   

 
SECTION 5. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and its 

publication, as provided by law.   
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this the 12th day of November, 2015. 
       
      APPROVED: 
 
 
       
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 

 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #6 

 

RESOLUTION 15-758 

 

HARRIS COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT  

BOARD OF DIRECTORS BALLOT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



CITY OF HUMBLE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 15-758 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE, TEXAS CASTING ITS BALLOT FOR 
THE ELECTION OF A PERSON TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HARRIS 

COUNTY APPRAISAL DISTRICT 
 

WHEREAS, the Chief Appraiser of the Harris County Appraisal District has delivered to the Mayor of 
this city, the names of those persons duly nominated as candidates to serve in that 
position on the board of directors of the Harris County Appraisal District, representing 
and to be filled by the cities other than the City of Houston, participating in said appraisal 
district; and 

 
WHEREAS, this city deems it appropriate and in the public interest to cast its vote for the candidate of 

its choice to fill such position; now therefore  
 
BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HUMBLE TEXAS: 
 
Section 1:  That the facts and recitations set forth in the preamble of this resolution be, and 

they are hereby, adopted, ratified, and confirmed. 
  
Section 2: That the City of Humble does hereby cast its vote for Ed Heathcott, to fill the 

position on the Board of Directors of the Harris County Appraisal District, 
representing and to be filled by the cities, other than the City of Houston, 
participating in the appraisal district.   

 
Section 3: That the City Secretary be, and he is hereby authorized and directed to deliver or 

cause to be delivered an executed or certified copy of this resolution to the Chief 
Appraiser of the Harris County Appraisal District no later than December 15, 2015. 

 
PASSED, APPROVED, AND RESOLVED this the 12th Day of November, 2015 
 
      APPROVED: 
 
            
      Merle Aaron 
      Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 





 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #7 

 

ELECTRICAL AND MECHNANICAL SERVICES 

CONTRACT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #8 

 

PUBLIC WORKS EQUIPMENT PURCHASE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #9 

 

DECLARED CITY HOLIDAYS 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: All City Personnel  
 
From:  Jason Stuebe, City Secretary 
 
Re: 2016 City Holiday Schedule 
 
 
In accordance with §6.02 of the City of Humble Personnel Policy, the following dates are 
declared as City Holidays for the 2016 Calendar Year: 
 
 New Year’s Day  Friday, January 1, 2016 
 Good Friday   Friday, March 26, 2016 
 Memorial Day   Monday, May 30, 2016 
 Independence Day  Monday, July 4, 2016 
 Labor Day   Monday, September 5, 2016 
 Thanksgiving Day  Thursday, November 24, 2016 
 Day After Thanksgiving Friday, November 25, 2016 
 Christmas Eve   Friday, December 23, 2016 
 Christmas Day   Monday, December 26, 2016 
  
 One (1) Floating Holiday / National Day of Service and Remembrance  
 
 
 
 
 
Jason Stuebe 
City Secretary 
 
 

114 WEST HIGGINS ● HUMBLE, TEXAS ● 77338 ● (281) 446-3061 ● FAX (281) 446-7843 

OFFICE OF THE 
CITY SECRETARY 



 

 

 

COUNCIL MEETING 

11-12-2015 

AGENDA ITEM #10 

 

DEVELOPMENT PLAT 

SHREE GANSHYAM 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 






